



Da Vinci Schools

Minutes

Da Vinci Schools Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time

Wednesday August 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Location

201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245

Da Vinci Schools ("DV") welcomes your participation at its Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Trustees ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of DV in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our schools. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the following guidelines are provided:

- 1. The meeting is accessible online at https://zoom.us/j/91595043616, or dial (669) 900-6833 and use
 - Meeting ID: 915 9504 3616.
- 2. Agendas are available to all audience members on the Da Vinci Schools website at www.davincischools.org.
- 3. Audience members who wish may speak on any agenda items or under the general category of "Public Comments," which is time set aside for members of the audience to raise issues not specifically on the agenda. However, due to public meeting laws, the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are limited to three (3) minutes each and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed twenty (20) minutes. Non-English speakers who use a translator shall have six (6) minutes in which to address the Board.
- 4. The Board may give direction to staff to respond to your concern or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen-requested item.

- 5. The chair will recognize such individuals who wish to speak on a specific agenda item at the appropriate time. When addressing the Board, speakers are requested to adhere to the time limits set forth, and to not repeat remarks made by those who preceded them.
- 6. Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session of the Board which are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board members shall be available for public inspection at 201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245, during Business Office operating hours. Please contact the CEO's office at 310-725-5800.

The agenda and documents in the agenda packet will be made available, if requested, in appropriate alternative formats to any person with a disability as required by the ADA, 42 USC section 12132, and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. To request a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, you must contact the CEO's office at 310-725-5800 at least 48 hours before a regular meeting, and at least 12 hours before a special meeting. (Government Code § 54954.2(a)(1).)

Trustees Present

B. Meath, D. Boston, D. Brann, J. Webber, L. Heimov, R. Ochoa, R. Santiago

Trustees Absent

None

Trustees who arrived after the meeting opened

R. Santiago

Guests Present

A. Johnson, A. Wohlwerth, Anthony Pur, B. Silvers, C. Levenson, E. D'Souza (remote), Joshua Beals, L. Rodriguez (remote), M. Amato, M. Denniston (remote), M. Rainey (remote), M. Wunder, Nancy Banuelos (remote), Neil Goldman, Nisha Dugal, R. Stoll (remote), Roger Banuelos (remote), S. Wallis, V. Bravo, V. Rodriguez

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

D. Brann called a meeting of the board of trustees of Da Vinci Schools to order on Wednesday Aug 23, 2023 at 6:03 PM.

B. Record Attendance and Guests

C. Approval of Agenda

- D. Boston made a motion to approve the agenda.
- L. Heimov seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

D. Brann Aye

R. Ochoa Aye

L. Heimov Aye

D. Boston Aye

B. Meath Aye

R. Santiago Absent

J. Webber Aye

D. Public Comments

Ms. Erin D'Souza, Da Vinci Communications Principal, gave a public comment describing the Class of 2027 Overnighter event which had just ended. The Overnighter has been a signature Da Vinci practice for 15 years. The 11th and 12th grade student leaders passed on the Da Vinci Communications culture of inclusivity and celebrating differences to the new 9th grade students. The students and staff enjoyed the experience. Ms. D'Souza expressed her gratitude to the Board and Dr. Wunder for supporting the Overnighters, which are provided free of charge to all students and contribute greatly to Da Vinci culture and students' sense of belonging.

Brief discussion about the tropical storm on Sunday and Monday ensued. Ms. D'Souza was grateful that Da Vinci was open on Monday so that they could make the trip, as the weather was beautiful when they got to the camp.

II. Information

A. From the Board

Dr. Webber commented that the Overnighter is a fantastic trip for the 9th graders, and a wonderful welcome them and introduction to Da Vinci's culture.

Dr. Brann noted that it was his last Da Vinci Schools Board meeting, as he is stepping down from the Board. He also commented that he would be attending the Wiseburn Retirees breakfast, where he will present newly printed copies of the continued history of Wiseburn.

B. From the CEO/Superintendent

Dr. Wunder thanked Dr. Brann for the thousands of hours he has put in to creating and supporting Da Vinci Schools over the past 16 years.

Dr. Wunder shared the commitment of staff to truly analyze the possibility of Advanced Placement classes. Dr. Allegra Johnson led the work to analyze the issue, which was first addressed in a Cabinet meeting. Dr. Wunder and the team are committed to a swift, public, comprehensive analysis of the benefits and tradeoffs of an AP program.

Mr. Meath asked about site administrators' input. Dr. Wunder clarified that the administrators, staff, and alumni input would be taken into consideration. The Cabinet understands that this will be an iterative process.

Mr. Boston asked about the impetus for this study. Dr. Wunder shared that community discussion last year and Wiseburn and Da Vinci trustees' requests resulted in staff being asked to study the issue.

Dr. Wunder expressed his trepidation about doing AP classes in a traditional way, due to the inequity of access. However, he has heard from others that there may be a way to address equity issues.

Dr. Wunder presented a few slides about the complexity of Da Vinci Schools resulting from attempting to create a student-centered public institution constrained by a public education system designed for mass production and batch processing. A large part of the complexity lies in compliance and funding. Da Vinci has five charter schools which are five separate LEAs, two authorizers, two school boards, 250+ partnerships, 347 employees (of which 122 are teachers with separate budgets), the Da Vinci Schools Fund, the Da Vinci Institute, and six separate locations. Da Vinci's financial growth from 2019 to 2023 is significant, of which fundraising has been an integral part. Ms. Levenson gets most of the credit for that, but Michael Amato and his team get the work of compliance and grant follow-through. Staff and students have benefited from that work. Good financial management has led to significant increases in per pupil funding, pay increases for staff, and protection from economic downturns (reserves).

Ms. Levenson gave a performing arts update, saying that we have received a lot of positive feedback. She thanked the Board for their support.

Regarding Wiseburn Community Outreach and Engagement, Da Vinci has hired a community liaison, consultant Christina Joubert, to develop deep roots in the community, add value for Wiseburn families, and increase Da Vinci's visibility.

Dr. Wunder noted that one of the topics for the 3x3 meeting is joint communications.

Mr. Boston asked about the community outside of Wiseburn. He asked staff to leverage the content created with the 60% of families from outside of Wiseburn, and create points of contact with them. Ms. Heimov shared that the Three Sixty at South Bay residential complex has not received any informational fliers due to their regulations. There should be a way to work with the HOA board to solve the issue.

R. Santiago arrived at 6:21 PM.

C. Presentation: Enrollment Update

Ms. Levenson gave the enrollment update, saying that 723 students enrolled this year. She believes that the enrollment numbers will come in right where budgeted. There are

under 1,600 in the 201 N. Douglas Street building if you remove the 16 Da Vinci Flex students who are not on campus during the day.

964 students (449 9th graders) are on the wait list.

85% of Dana 8th grade Wiseburn residents, 83% of Dana non-resident 8th graders, and 78% of Connect 8th graders enrolled at Da Vinci.

New students enrolling across all grades at Da Vinci Schools come from these top feeder districts: L.A. Unified (22), Wiseburn (174), Centinela Valley (124), Inglewood (97(, Torrance Unified (30), Redondo Unified (30), Hawthorne (28), Compton Unified (15), Manhattan Beach (14), and El Segundo (5).

Recruitment and outreach is year-round, featuring in-person info meetings and tours, virtual student chats, etc.

Ms. Heimov commented on the stellar reputation Da Vinci RISE High enjoys in the community that it serves.

Mr. Ochoa asked about statistics of students whose parents work in the aerospace industry. Dr. Brann has always been interested in this factor. Mr. Ochoa noted that the 105 freeway has made it more convenient to commute and bring students to the area around Da Vinci.

D. Presentation: CTE Lab Update

Dr. Wallis shared that the CTE Lab was used programmatically in the summer for the aviation and welding programs. All schools have brought students to the space. He is teaching a shop seminar for all 201 N. Douglas campus students. Dr. Wallis welcomed the Board members to tour the space.

Dr. Brann commented that we are here to make a dent in poverty and change the lives of young people. Not all students want to go to college, so expanding the space is critical. Mr. Ochoa inquired about the software the students are using. He shared that employers require the use of Solidworks. Dr. Wallis shared that OnShape is being used because it is online and accessible. The Lab's computers are equipped to handle Solidworks. We are open to folks who know Solidworks to come and volunteer to teach it. Mr. Santiago shared that he uses Creo, but using a true modeler like Solidworks is something that Da Vinci should pursue.

E. Financial Update

Mr. Amato shared the balance sheet, profit & loss statements, and year end results. \$5.1M increase in net assets were listed on the balance sheet, of which about \$4.1M came from ERC funds. Da Vinci had a banner year in the number of grants across all of

its schools, which benefits Da Vinci's financial position through the end of 2022-23 and into the future.

He noted the \$4,973,755 net change in unrestricted funds which will be added to reserves. He shared Da Vinci's healthy reserve percentage of 35.9%. The year end net unrestricted operating reserves stand at \$13.5M. The \$1.5M reserve funding being held for the soccer field decreased to \$0 due to Wiseburn opting to fund the field alone. CTE Studio project costs of \$1,170,416 are in reserves, although the actual costs will be higher due to inflation. Da Vinci trustees allocated \$1.5M to pay for the soccer field. When Wiseburn passed Measure EE, they told us they were paying for the field.

Mr. Denniston noted regarding the overall reserve percentage; the statewide average is in the 15-20% range, so Da Vinci has a comfortably larger average reserve than other districts at 35.9%.

F. Operations Update

Mr. Bravo expressed his gratitude that the Girls' Volleyball team and their families are back on the Mainland. He introduced Mr. Nick Davidson, aka A.D., the new Athletic Director of Wiseburn Da Vinci Athletics. Mr. Davidson thanked the board members and expressed his hope to see them at the games.

Mr. Bravo spoke of the student morning drop off program being piloted. The El Segundo Police Department has delineated a drop off zone in the back of the campus. Each of the 201 N. Douglas St. schools will have a chance to drop off students in the back of the campus to test it. If it is successful, Da Vinci hopes to keep the drop off zone, which is located on Grand Avenue.

Brief discussion ensued about the rotation of the staggered start times among the schools.

Mr. Bravo went on to note that the construction firm for the CTE Studio was approved by both the Da Vinci and Wiseburn Boards. The soccer field architect has been approved by the Wiseburn Board, as well.

Dr. Webber expressed her gratitude for Mr. Bravo, who cares about the personal safety of every student.

III. Approval of Minutes

A. Approval of Minutes for the July 26, 2023 Regular Da Vinci Schools Board Meeting

- J. Webber made a motion to approve the minutes from Da Vinci Schools Regular Board Meeting on 07-26-23.
- R. Santiago seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye

IV. Consent Agenda

A. Accept Da Vinci Schools Payment Register - July 2023

- L. Heimov made a motion to accept the Da Vinci Schools Payment Register for July 2023.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Brann Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Webber Aye

B. Approve Banc of California Line of Credit Renewal

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve the Banc of California Line of Credit Renewal.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye

C. Approve the Pursuit of Federal Title I, II, and IV Funding for 2023-2024 via the Consolidated Application for All Da Vinci Schools

L. Heimov made a motion to approve the Pursuit of Federal Title I, II, and IV Funding for 2023-2024 via the Consolidated Application for All Da Vinci Schools.

J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye

D. Approve the Year End Unaudited Actual Financials for Da Vinci Communications, Design, Science, and Connect

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve the Year End Unaudited Actual Financials for Da Vinci Communications, Design, Science, and Connect.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

E. Approve 2023-2024 Report of Alternative Authorization of Teaching Assignments

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve 2023-2024 Report of Alternative Authorization of Teaching Assignments.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- L. Heimov Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Santiago Aye

F. Approve Intervention Specialist Position and Pay Scale

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve the Intervention Specialist Position and Pay Scale.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- J. Webber Aye

Roll Call

D. Brann Aye

G. Approve Revised Pay Scale for the Office Manager Position

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve the Revised Pay Scale for the Office Manager Position.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- R. Santiago Aye

H. Approve Addendum to Employee Contract - Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Brann requested to defer this item until after the closed session.

Ratify California State University Long Beach Internship and Educational Affiliation Agreements

- L. Heimov made a motion to ratify the California State University Long Beach Internship and Education Affiliation Agreements.
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- R. Santiago Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- L. Heimov Aye

J. Approve 2023-2024 Master Contract with TLC Child and Family Services (Journey Academy)

- L. Heimov made a motion to approve the 2023-2024 Master Contract with TLC Child and Family Services (Journey Academy).
- J. Webber seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Boston Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye

V. Special Board Action

A. Approve Extension of Board Term

B. Meath made a motion to approve the extension of Derrick Boston's Board Term. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Meath Aye
- J. Webber Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- D. Boston Abstain

VI. Closed Session

A. Conference with Legal Counsel

Closed session entered at 7:29 p.m.

VII. Closing Items

A. Reconvene for Public Session & Closed Session Reporting

Public session reconvened at 8:38 p.m.

Dr. Brann stated that no action was taken in Closed session, but that the Board would take a vote on the remaining item IV. H.

Dr. Brann read the following statement.

The proposed bonus is in the amount of \$37,500 a year over the course of Michael Amato's remaining three year contract. Payments are split in December and June. We have received a comp analysis from Veronica earlier this week.

Michael is planning for a move to the State of Nevada in the coming months to support his family. We are in the process of completing a remote work agreement but cannot do so until he establishes residency there, sometime during the school year 2023-24. Once he makes the move, we will complete the Remote Work Agreement and bring it back to

the Board for approval. Michael will be in attendance at Da Vinci Board meetings and work in person at various other times during each month.

R. Santiago made a motion to approve the Addendum to the Employee Contract for the Chief Financial Officer.

L. Heimov seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- D. Boston Aye
- R. Ochoa Aye
- L. Heimov Aye
- D. Brann Aye
- B. Meath Aye
- R. Santiago Aye
- J. Webber Aye

B. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:41 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

A. Wohlwerth

Next Regular Da Vinci Schools Board meeting: September 27, 2023.